HOLLISTER v. SOETORO et al Doc. 64 Att. 6

To: Whom it may concern. ‘
Merit Systems Protection Office October 11, 2002

Washington Regional Office

From: Ralph L. Wright 7%/

Representative
AFGE Local 1831

Subject: Amendment of a initial appeal to the Merit System Protection Board.

On or about September 7, 2002 a initial appeal was sent to the Merit System Protection
Board at the Washington Regional Office. Unfortunately an oversight was made when we
did not include copies of the relevant documents, specifically a copy of the proposal and
decision letters. We sincerely apologize for the oversight. In light of the oversight, please
find included a copy of the initial appeal, a copy of the proposal letter and a copy of the
decision letter.

If there is anything else I/'We have overlooked, please do not hesitate to contact me at
(202) 842-6140.
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OMB NO 3124-0009

INSTRUCTIONS

GENERAL: You do not have to use this form to file an appeal with
the Board. However, if you do not, your appeal must still comply with
the Board's regulations. See 5 C.F.R. Parts 1201, 1208, and 1209.
Your agency's personnel office will give you access to the regulations,
and the Board will expect you to be familiar with them. You also
should become familiar with the Board'’s key case law and controlling
court decisions as they may affect your case. Complete Parts I, 11, II1
and Y of this form regardless of the kind of action you are appealing.
Complete Part V1 only if you are appealing an action resulting from a
reduction in force. You must tell the Board if you are raising an
affirmative defense §ee Part IV), and you are responsible for
proving each defense you raise. If you believe the action you are
appealing was threatened, proposed, taken, or not taken because of
whistleblowing activities, you must complete Part VIL. If you are
requesting a stay, you must complete Part VIIL. If you claim a
violation of your rights under the Uniformed Services Employment
and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA) or the Veterans
Employment Opportunities Act (VEOA), you must provide the
information required by the Board's regulations at 5 C.F.R. 1208.13
(for USERRA appeals) or 5 C.F.R. 1208.23 (for VEOA appeals).
You may use a separate sheet of paper (please put your name and
address at the top of each additional page) or you may include the
information in block 31 of Part IV.

WHERE TO FILE AN APPEAL: You must file your appeal with the
Board's regional or field office which has responsibility for the
geographic area where your duty station was located when the agency
took the action or, if you are appealing a retirement or suitability
decision, the geographic area where you live. See 5 C.F.R. Part 1201,
Appendix [;and § C.F.R. 1201.4(d).

"WHEN TO FILE AN APPEAL: Unless your appeal is covered by a
law that sets a different filing time limit, your appeal must be filed

during the period beginning with the day after the effective date, if
any, of the action you are appealing and ending on the 30th day after

1. Name (last, first, middle initial)

the effective date, or within 30 days after the date you receive the
agency's decision, whichever is later. However, if you and the agency
mutually agree in wriling to try to resolve your dispute through an
alternative dispute resolution process before you file an appeal, you
have an additional 30 days--for a total of 60 days—to file your appeal.
You may not file your appeal before the effective date of the action you
are appealing. If your appeal is late, it may be dismissed as untimely. If
you are filing 2 USERRA appeal, there is no time limit for filing. (see
5 CFR 1208.12). You may not file a VEOA appeal with the Board
unless you first filed a complaint with the Secretary of Labor and
allowed the Secretary at least 60 days to try to resolve the matter; any
subsequent appeal to the Board must be filed within 15 days of the date
you recetve notice that the Secretary has been unable to resolve the
matter (see 5 C.F.R. 1208.22). If you are filing a whistleblower appeal
after first filing a complaint with the Office of Special Counsel (OSC),
your appeal must be filed within 65 days of the date of the OSC notice
advising you that the Special Counsel will not seek corrective action or
within 60 days after the date you receive the OSC notice, whichever is
later (see 5 C.F.R. 1209.5). The date of filing is the date your appeal is
postmarked, the date of the facsimile transmission, the date it is
delivered to a commercial overnight delivery service, or the date of
receipt if you personally deliver it to the regional or field office.

HOW TO FILE AN APPEAL: You may file your appeal by mail, by
facsimile, by commercial ovemight delivery, or by personal delivery.
You must submit two copies of both your appeal and all attachments.
You may supplement your response to any question on separate sheets
of paper, but if you do, please put your name and address at the top .of
each additional page. All of your submissions must be legible and on
8 172" x 11" paper. Your appeal must contain your or your
representative's signature in block 6. If it does not, your appeal will
be rejected and returned to you. If your represeatative signs block
6, you must sign block 11 or submit a separate written designation
of representative.

2. Social Securnity Number

[Dodge. . Fced .

|
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3. Present address fnumber and street, city, state, and ZIP code) You must notify the Board
of any change of address or telephone number while the appeal is pending with MSPB.

4. Home phone (include aréa code)

[4A\0 -Q73-2463

|

0L Ladtham D
Crownsuitle Md 210 2.

5. Office phone (include area code)

202 42 (140

6. I certify that all of the statements made in
this appeal are true, complete, and correct
to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Signature of appellant or designated representative

Date signed

Optomact Form 10) fRev :l::;.
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X 11 Designation of Representative

7. You may represent yourself in this appeal or you may choose someone to represent you. Your representative does not have to be an attorney. You
may change your designation of a representative at a later date, if you so desire, but you must notify the Board promptly of any change. Where

circumstances require, a separate designation of representative may be submitted after the original filing. Include the information requested in blocks
7 through 11.

*I hereby designate 'RC\\ID»\ \}D < \O\»\* 1o serve as my

representative during the coursé of this appeal. | unddrstand that my representative is authorized to act on my behalf, In addition, |
specifically delegate to my representative the authority to settle this appeal on my behalf, I understand that any limitation on this
settlement authority must be filed in writing with the Board.”

8. Representative's address (number and street, city, state, and 9. Representative's employer

ﬂ&g&;& Locol VS 3) [ 0eYong) C“)G.\\?J‘\'r £ fAct |

NoFonal Gallery o3 At 10.8) Reresentatves ecahone sumbee |
g Constittion Woe. 1. L. 202 -24942-6140

\\DQS\/\'\ 1) &\‘Q ~ D . 205(1’5 10.b) Representative's facsimile number
202 -23% (,R’40 ]

11. Appellant’s signature Date

3L, ON DY Q-7-02
o ‘ e Part IIl Appealed Action -~ -~ =~ ERDE

12. Briefly describe the agency action you wish to appeal and attach the proposal letter and decision letter. If you are appealing a decision relating to
the denial of retirement benefits, attach a copy of OPM's reconsideration decision. If the relevant SF-50 or its equivalent is available, send it now;
however, do NOT delay filing your appeal because of it. You may submit the SF-50 when it becomes available. Later in the proceeding, you will be
afforded an opportunity to submit detailed evidence in support of your appeal.

3 ‘*3}5."\ Yo Qg?e‘l\ eny ond A\ octhi ons Thal Ahe Wokisna Gallecy ot Bt has
022A te TR YMe  fronn, My Jolo.

13. Name and address of the agency that took the action you are appealing 14. Your position title and duty station at the
(including bureau or other divisions, as well as street address, city, state and ZIP code) time of the action appealed

Nabio nal alevy of AcT Eedvicionr
(D\'\'\i\ CO(\B \)f\f)\f\\c)v\ H\)Q\\)U) KDQSU\(\k‘¥>A DC 20563 Lb«s\ing_’_\‘of\ L.

15. Grade at time of the action appealed 16. Salary at the time of the action appealed - 17. Are you a'veteran and/or entitled to
the employment rights of a veteran?

WG 10-5 s ]m Lo O B

18. Employment status at the time of the action appealed: 19. If retired, date of retirement 20. Type of service
DTemporary DApplicanl Retired (month, day, year) Competitive SES
- D Excepted [[] Postal Service
H Permanent D Term D Seasonal : D Foreign Service
21. Length of government service 22. Length of service with acting agency 23. Were you serving a probationary or trial

period at the time of the action appealed?

I
Yes 4 No

\O NTS. \Q \ffs

24. Date you received written notice 25. Date you reccived the final decision notice 26. Effective date of the action appealed
of the proposed action (month, day, year) (month, day, year) (attach a copy) (month, day, year)
(attach a copy)

Joly 15,2002 RugusT 30,2002 Avaust A0, 2002

Optisasl Fora 1T) (Rev [1/00)
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27. Explain briefly why you think the agen

‘as wrong in taking this action. First I b« ave the Agency action is KXKE

TOgn because the Agency ha. not presented any evidence at ail in support of its actioh
As of this date the only thing the Agency has presented in support of its actions ard
speculations, accusations, assumtions and hearsay. Continued on a separate sheet.

XX
Yes :

error(s)?

:] Yes

28. Do you believe the penalty imposed
by the agency was too harsh? you asking for)?

30.a) Do you bliec the aency
committed harmful procedural

29. What action would you like the Board to take on this case (i.c., what remedy are

I would like for the Board to rescind the remdvhl
and reinstate me to my position with back pay

-~ Part1V Appellant's Defenses . -

30.b) It so, what is (are) the error(s)?

U,

30.c) Explain how you were harmed by the error(s).

Block 31 - Violations of Law: If you use this block to claim a violation of your rights under USERRA or VEOA, you must
include the information required by the Board's reguiations at 5 C.F.R. 1208.13 (for USERRA appeals) or 5 C.F.R. 1208.22
(for YEOA appeals). DO NOT use this block to claim a vielation of the Whistleblower Protection Act; instead, complete Part

YII and, if you are also requesting a stay, Part VIII.

D Yes

are appealing violated the law? ,

31.a) Do you believe that the action you 31. b) If so, what

law?

o

31. ¢) How was it violated?

it to be true.

32.a) If you believe you were d_isg:rimina.tcd against by the agency, in connection with the matter appealed, because of your race,
color, religion, sex, national origin, marital status, political affiliation, disability, or age, indicate so and explain why you believe

32.b) Have you filed a formal discrimination complaint with your agency or any other

agency concerning the matter which you are seeking to appeal? D Yes (attach a copy) gNo
32.c) If yes, place filed (agency, number and street, city, state, and ZIP code) 33.d) Date filed (month, day, year)
32.¢) Has a decision been issued?
DYes (attach a copy) D No
Oprionst Form 103 {Rav I~Il’.:l

CONTINUED ON ATTACHED PAGE.

SCPR 1140, 1200, 00d 1100
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THIS IS A CONTINUATION OF THE ANSWER TO QUESTION 27 ON PAGE 3.
Ialso believe that the Agency action is wrong because the charge of tampering
with a Gallery key ring is more than 1 1/2 years old, which makes it a stale offens
that is based on nothing more than the word of a proven lier. In addition to the
above I believe the Agency action is wrong because the Agency has conspired to
remove me from my position every since I became a Union representative. Please see
attached letter.

I further believe the Agency action is wrong because there is evidence that other
employees have lost or misplaced entire key rings and no action disciplinary or
ohherwise was ever taken. Please see attached memo.

I strongly believ that the Agency action is wrong because all of the alleged offens:
were intentionally created and are simply Xaise based on false accusations.

Finally the Agency action is wrong because there is absolutely no evidence to
suppord any of the accusations or alleged offenses.



|

33.2) Have you, or anyone in your behalf, 1 a formal grievance with your 33.\  ate filed (month, day, year)
agency concerning this matter, under a negotiated grievance procedure
rovided by a collective bargaining agreement?
’j N/A
Yes (attach a copy) No
33.c) If yes, place filed (agency, number and street, city, state, and ZIP code) 33.d) Has a decision been issued?
Yes (attach a copy) DNO

33.¢) If yes, date issued (month, day, year)

. Part V Hearing

34. You may have a right to a hearing on this appeal. If you do not want a hearing, the Board will make its decision on the basis of
the documents you and the agency submit, after providing you and the agency with an opportunity to submit additional documents.

Do you want a hearing? QYes D No
yes I want a hearing

If you choose to have a hearing, the Board will notify you where and when it is to be held.

* . Part VI Reduction in Force

INSTRUCTIONS
Fill out this part only if you are appealing from a Reduction in Force. Your agency's personnel office can furnish you with
most of the information requested below.

35. Retention group and sub-group 36. Service computation date 37. a) Has your agency offered you another
position rather than separating you?

[Jrs [l

37.b) Title of position offered 37.c) Grade of position offered 37.d) Salary of position offered
M I ] per L I
37.e) Location of position offered 37.1) Did you accept this position?

Dm DNo

38. Explain why you think you should not have been affécted by the Reduction In Force.. (Explanations could include: you were
placed in the wrong retention group or sub-group; an error was made in the computation of your setvice computation date;
competitive area was loo narrow: improperly reached for separation from competitive level; an exception was made to the regular
order of selection: the required number of days notice was not given; you believe you have assignment [bump or retreat] rights; or
any other reasons. Please provide as much information as possible regarding each reason.)

LY ) Focm 18) (Rev ) 1208}
prioas) Focm hostl
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-+ Fart VII Whistleblowing Activity . -0

INSTRUCTIONS
Complete Parts VII and VIII of this form only if you believe the action you are appealing Is based on whistleblowing
activities. If you filed a complaint with the Office of Special Counsel (0SC) using Form OSC-11 (8/00) before filing this
appeal, you may attach a copy of Part 2, Reprisal for Whistleblowing, of the OSC form together with any continuation sheet
or supplement filed with OSC. This will give the Board the information requested in blocks 39(a) through (c) below. Please
complete the other blocks in this part even if you attach Form OSC-11.
39.a) Have you disclosed information that evidences a violation 39.b) If yes, provide the name, title, and office address of the
of any law, rule, or regulation; gross mismanagement; a person to whom the disclosure was made.
gross waste of funds; an abuse of authority; or a substantial
and specific danger to public health or safety?

D Yes (attach a copy or summary of disclosure) D No

39.c) Date the disclosure was made (month, day, year)

40. If you believe the action you are appealing was... (please check appropriate box)

D Threatened D Proposed D Taken D Not Taken

... because of a disclosure evidencing a violation of any law, rule, or regulation; gross mismanagement; a gross waste of funds; an
abuse of authority; or a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety, provide:

a) a chronology of facts concerning the action appealed; and

b) explain why you belicve the action was based on whistleblowing activity and attach a copy of any documentary evidence

41.a) Have you sought corrective action from the Office of 41.b) If yes, date(s) filed (month, day, year)
Special Counsel concerning the action which you are appealing?

[] Yes (attach a copy of your request D No
to the Office of Special Counsel
for corrective action)

41.c) Place filed (location, number and streei, city, state, and ZIP code)

Opticnel Porm 207 (Ao I.:I'C:).

$CPR 1200, 1200, esad 1189
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42. Have you received a written notice of ; right to file this appeal from the Office of Sp | Counsel?

n Ye.;' (attach a copy) ” No
ted L

43.a) Have you already requested a stay from the Board of the 43.b) If yes, date requested (moanth, day, year)
action you are sceking to appeal?

D Yes (attach a copy) [] No

>

3.d) Has there been a decision?

43.c) Place filed (location, number and street, city, state, and
ZIP code)

j Yes (attach a copy) D No
- Part VHI Stay Request ' _

INSTRUCTIONS
You may request a stay of a personnel action allegedly based local servicing personnel office or the agency's designated
on whistleblowing at anytime after you become ¢ligible to file representative, 35 C.F.R 1209.3.
an appeal with the Board under 5 C.F.R. 1209.5, but no later
than the time limit set for the close of discovery in the appeal. If your stay request is being filed prior to filing an appeal with
The stay request may be filed prior to, simultancous with, or the Board, you must complete Parts | and {I and items 41
after the filing of an appeal. When you file a stay request with through 43 above.

the Board, you must simultaneously serve it upon the agency's

44. On separate sheets of paper, please provide the following. Please put your name and address at the top of each page.

a. A chronology of facts, including a description of the c. Evidence and/or argument demonstrating that there is a
disclosure and the action taken by the agency (unless you substantial likelihood that you will prevail on the merits of
have already supplied this information in Part VII above). your appeal of the personnel action.

b. Evidence and/or argument demonstrating that the: d. Documentary evidence that supports your stay request.
(1) action threatened, proposed, taken, or not taken is a ¢. Evidence and/or argument addressing how long the stay
personnel action, as defined in 5 C.F.R. 1209.4(a); and should remain in effect.

(2) action complained of was based on whistleblowing, as f. Certificate of service specifying how and when the stay
defined in 5 C.F.R. 1209.4(b) (unless you have already request was served on the agency.

supplied this information in Part VII above).
g. You may provide evidence and/or argument concerning
whether a stay would impose extreme hardship on the

agency.

" Privacy Act Statement: This form requests personal information which You should know that the decisions of the Merit Systems Protection
is relevant and necessary to reach a decision in your appeal. The Merit Board on appeals are final administrative decisions and, as such, are
Systems Protection Board collects this information in order to process awailable to the public under the provisions of the Freedom of
appeals under its statutory and regulatory authority. Since your appeal Information Act. Additionally, it is possible that information contained
is a voluntary action you are not required lo provide any personal in your appeal file may be released as required by the Freedom of
information in connection with it. However, failure to supply the Merit Information Act. Some information about your appeal will also be used
Systems Board with all the information essential to reach a decision in in depersonalized form as a database for program statistics.

your case could result in the rejection of your appeal
Public Reporting Burden: The public reporting burden for this

The Merit Systems Protection Board is authorized under provisions of collection of information is estimated to vary from 20 minutes lo |
Executive Order 9397, dated November 22, 1943, to request your hour, with an average of 30 minutes per response, including time for
Social Security number, but providing your Social Security number is reviewing the form, searching existing data sources, gathering the data
voluntary and failure to provide it will not result in the rejection of necessary, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.
your appeal. Your Social Security number will only be used for Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of
identification purposes in the processing of your appeal. the collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this

burden, to Financial and Administrative Management, Merit Systems
Protection Board, 1615 M Street, NW., Washington, DC 20419.

Optissatl Farm 103 (Rev .“"'u’..
3 CFR 1201, 1208, uad 1309
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AUGUST 2, 2002

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

On or about May 15, 2002, I came to the ATHM
office, located in the National Gallery of Art, in
Washington,D.C. to conduct & second interview for the
Electrical Supervisor positfon. The followlng officials
were present: Kurt Stsson, Mike Giamber, and John Bixler,
After asking me a variety of questions, Mike Giamber
opened and ravealed what appeared to be a employee roster,
He then began to give his personal opinion about each
¢f my future employees in great detail. When Mr. Fred
Dodgze's name came to turn, Mr. Glamber stated that Mr,
Dodge 1is our Union Steward in the Flectrical Shop and that
he 18 our "“preoblem c¢hild"”, bur you don't really have to
concern yourself with him, becausze ha will not ba around
much longer. Mr, Giamber also stated, "was already have
something in the works for Mr. Dodge. Mr. Kurt Sisson
also agreed with the very disturbing comments.

During my brief stay at the Gallery, it is
definicely my belief that Mr, Dodge is baing targeted
for his affilfation with the Union and his poestive attitude
with the black employees of the shop. This typae of behavior
from selecting officials 4is not desirable aor warvanted.
1t very seriously guestions the honesty, integrity and
fitness of the Gallery's officials.

Please feel free to contact me at {(410)674-~
6414 for additional information, or for any queations you
might have regarding this very disturbing issus.

Sincerely,

LLOYD G- LF
Electrical Sup.
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Acknowledged receipt: ~——/-  J-

Date: ]‘\5 -

July 15, 2002

, |lhouette : ThlS made the first badge unservncéable According to Mr. Reslly, you were
.- amused, by this error and asked to see the badge. Mr. Reilly allowed you to inspect it.
You then ‘asked if you could keep it. .

Mr. Reilly explained to you that he had a duty to destroy such defective badges
and thus could not let you have it. He then proceeded to issue you a proper 1.D. badge.
To the best of his recoliection, Mr. Reilly placed the defective badge on a counter along
with other badges that needed to be destroyed.



Mr. Fred Dodge
July 15, 2002
Page No. 2

- A few days Iater Brian Thomas, your supervisor at the time, observed you .

_.displaying this badge with a blacked out silhouette of your face. On March 5, 2002 Mr
Thomas checked with Mr. Reilly and mqurred why you were issued a defectlve I.D..
badge. Mr. Reilly explained what had occurred and concluded that you must have
taken the defective badge despite his tellir g you that you could not have it and that it
needed to be destroyed...: :

. When Mr.__. . omas questloned you about this matter you admitted to havung the
badge but told_hrm that Mr. Reilly had told you that you could have it.

~ Q Arvinaac n“‘:\n ~f Dentantiam

i~al 7 CarmnAans
Il.ra WITI VIO O, WV UL 1 Tuicuwuiiuvidg \Jcl VILCO

mistsed to gain Un; )t
~action be taken concemlng this matter

For having taken: the defective Gallery 1.D. badge, desprte' Mr. Relll)} s clear
instructions that. you could not have it and that it needed to be destroyed | am charging
you with the unauthonzed taklng of an NGA 1: D badge :

- For having told Mr Thomas that Mr Rerlly 'had altowed yo o take the defective
_\D. badge when in fact Mr. ‘Reilly-had proh pec:ﬁcatty told you
~ that the defective badge needed to be destroye """"
statement

..fSpecrf catron B: Reasons 2 3 and 4:

On April 15, 2002 I questnoned you'a ut a report { had reoetved from Mr.
Thomas that sometime inJantary 2001, you had removed the Seventh Street (WP-4)
elevator key from his engineer’s key ring. You replied that you had not done so and
added that you were completely unaware of any information concerning unauthorized
tampering with key rings. Indeed, you stated, “I have no information about anybody
removing keys from key rings.” '

An administrative investigation of these allegations ensued. My review of the
evidence developed leads me to conclude that your statements to me on April 15, 2002,
were untrue.



Mr. Fred Dodge
July 15, 2002
Page No. 3

.- According to Mr. Thomas, sometime after he started working at the Gallery in
October 2000, he realized that the WP-4 elevator was a convenient way to access the
~ basement level of the West Building where the Electrical Shop is located. One
-drawback was that in order to access the WP-4 elevator, he first needed to pick up his
lengmeer s key ring from the security office locatgd on Fourth Street.! Mr. Thomas .

oted that pnck g"up the key ring was. not always the most pracncable thlng to do ﬁrst

s ‘added that one mornmg, approxnmately in January 2001, you forgot
t 'key at home As. a result, the two of you had to walk a greater

“back’ on 'Accordlng to Mr Thomas you told him that you had been domg this for years
..and that nobody had caught on or questioned you about it. You ~dded that other

eople had done it too.

1sconducthconcernmg a separate matter the two of you ‘had a falhng out.

Gallery Crrcular No 58 Key Policy, Section V. A., provides as follows:

All keys mdudmg those for elevators, escalators, mechanical and maintenance
oomis;etc., will be kept in a locked key vault located in the Protection Services
~ Security Control Office. Keys will be placed onto a numbered key ring to
correspond with the key vault hook number. Keys for persons who need several
change keys to perform their job functions, or any form of controlled key, will be
placed on a numbered key ring that will be checked out from the Security Office
when needed, and returned to the Security Office before leaving the premises
each day. A list of persons who are authorized to draw specific key rings will be
maintained in the Security Control Office. This list will be the main determinant of
whether a person is authonzed to check out a particular key ring. Exceptions to
the key ring authorization list will be prohibited in all but emergency situations
and then only through the authorization of the Chief of Protection Services.



Mr. Fred Dodge
July 15, 2002
Page No. 4

According to Mr. Thomas, he believed you set out to get him in trouble for the detached
-WP-4 elevator key in retaliation for his disci linary action again T ‘
t Y LEN Sd Lpa/pr;yjmﬁﬁ gr /vyé/q 7 ‘
Indeed, according to Robert Lowry, Plumber, sometime in early March 2002, he
" overhéard an individual he believed to be you, state that you were going to have Mr.
-~ Thomas' keys checked : Lowry further conf smed that he warned Mr. Thomas about
'thrs at the time. p ' ; :

In the course of this administrative investigation, Robert Brown, Locksmith
Leader, admitted that it was you who had informed him that Mr. Thomas had an
elevator key detached from a key ring. He stated that this was the reason he had

homas about the mrssrng WP-4 elevator key on Aprrl 11, 2002

When Mr Smith was questroned dunng the administrative investigation, he
: contradlcted you and said that you, not he, had stated having heard that someone took
the elevator key off of Mr. Thomas key ring and re—welded the nng back.

Based on the above, | have made the followmg concl_usnon :Contrary.to your-

at you were gorn [ fes uﬂ: 4

| WEre(Of S£177 g

coywilling to. le t onto me and to Mr. Pmar Although Mr Lowry did’ notsee you and only’ U;rf %nmr

- -overheard you, he has worked long enough with you to recognize your voice. .Finally,A®/ wd o ;j ?’é
“compared to your self-serving denials, | have given greater weight to Mr. Thomas™ ,"Sﬂfq%if:é C',

statements in this matter, since parts of it are supported by Mr. Brown and Mr. Lowry,.o:7¥ ¢ 4 af< m/}

- and because they are made against his own interest. r 77/ FORAEA

Thus, for your untruthful statement on April 15, 2002, when you stated to me that

you were completely unaware of any information concerning any unauthorized
tampering with key rings,{| am charging you with making a false statement.”



Mr. Fred Dodge
July 15, 2002
Page No. §

. For_your untruthful statement on May 9, 2002, during an official investigation,
- when you told Mr. Pinar that you were unaware of any Gallery issued keys missing from

key rings,d am charging you wilh“'makind a false stafement ™

For havxng taken Mr Thomas engineer’s key ring and returned wnth the WP—4
elevator key.detached from.it, | am charglng you with tamperlng with a Gallery key ring.e

including : all. ;power, llghtlng, signal and alarm equipment circuits. As such _your work
directly- |mpacts 'on the National Gallery of Art’s abiiity to provide functlonal pleasing,

- -and safe space. for'research, education, exhibition; production, storage, operations, and
- staff functions’ throughout the landmark buildings of the National Gallery of Art. Your

A ';work requnres you to stnctly adhere to all safety rules to prevent injury to yourself or

,_ : lSCOndUCI has’ destroyed my#rust andiconfidence in your
utles asan Electnc:an effectlvely without constant supervision.

know. ngly false statements to supervusors and an nnvestngator strike at the

‘ ‘the ployer-— employee relatlonshlp?Your repeated dishonesty in

elatlon o both keys and credentials raises serious doubts about your trustworthiness,
integrity, and continued fitness for employment at the Gallery. Your repeated lying to
your first level supervisor, Brian Thomas, about the I.D. badge; to me, your second level
supervisor, about the key; and to lnvestigator Pinar in a formal administrative .
investigation; shows a pattern of intent, lack of integrity, and lack of remorse. In light of

" your disturbing pattern of false statements and deception, | believe you lack the
potential for rehabilitation and that no lesser alternative penalty applies.
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1 am also greatly disturbed by your unauthorized taking of the Gallery I.D. badge.
~ As you know, in light of the Gallery's mission to protect priceless and ireplaceable~
works of art, the Gallery considers any 'unauthorized taking of property to be a serious
matter for which removal may be warranted. Given the high level of security required at
the Gallery to fulfill this mission, | find that your unauthorized taking of the I.D. badge
+, and your: subsequent lie about,how you acquired.it, and your tampering with key rings
" that allow access to many’ on-public areas of the Gallery, further substantiate my. loss
- of confidence and trust that'you possess the | necessary level of mtegnty and Judgment
to be retained as a Gallery employee. -

-Your unauthorized taking of the Gallery 1.D. badge, your tampering with Gallery
_key rings,. and _your repeated lying when confronted with your misconduct, are also
o -'_i}ffdetnmental to the Gallery’s ability to maintain the security of the works of art and to
Jrensure’ the_ welfare and safety of visitors and staff. ‘As you are well aware; followmg the
. }-‘mcrdents fSeptember 11, }2001 the Gallery, as, well as other federal lnstltutlons has

“neededtd’be destroyed so'as to. prevent any '

of the: Gallerys credentlals Jprogram.. Althoug ,

are a critical element of our Gallery security program-and there was stlll' }_tentxal for

its unlawful use. Moreover, your tampering with controlled Gallery key rings is further

evidence of your complete disregard for the: Gallery's critical security precautions.

~ Thus, your lack of integrity and poor judgment are contrary to the standards of conduct
expected of Gallery and federal employees

1 have also considered the clarity with whrch you were on notice of your ‘conduct.

Followmg Mr. Thomas' questioning of you on March 5,-2002, aboutthe G e_ryl D.

.. ‘badge you took, you went to the:Personnel Offic ice: and told Luus Baquedan_‘_

%' Representative, that you were thinking of resigning because. you were tonc ned that
“i-you would be fired for “stealing” the Gallery I.D:badge.- OnMarch 15, 2002;:,you
submitted a resignation and subsequently rescinded it on March 29, 2002, the it

was to become effective. [Your actions relating to your resignation are a clear indication |

- /that you knew the seriousness with which the Gallery would consrder an unauthonze .
(taklng of Gallery  property. l ‘ T ' ‘ -

You were also clearly on notice that the Gallery would consider a false statement
as a serious incident of misconduct. Indeed, although that particular charge was not
ultimately upheld against you, on March 4, 2002, you received notice of a proposal to
suspend you for among other things, making a false statement. Finally, your apparent
attempt to use the information concerning the tampered key rings to get Mr. Thomas
into trouble shows that you knew the seriousness of such an accusation, yet engaged in
the conduct of tampering with key rings yourself. Thus, you were clearly on notice that
your incidents of misconduct would be taken seriously and addressed by the Gallery.
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Additionally, I.zonsidered your past disciplinary history. On May 5, 1997, you
were issued a letter of warnlng for failure to carry out specific written instructions and for
failure to carry out regularly assrgned duties.

| xt | rev:ewed thet 34 ry s Standard Tgble of Offenses and Penaltnes

“controlled by the NGA whteh is lncluded under section J.2. of the Standard Table. The
-recommended penality for a first offense’ is a ten day suspension to removal. Thus,

- I Aac in enmhinatinn with tha n#hnr rharfnne tha
hhbn" on fhnc r-hornn O!Of‘c - 3aS We!- as N COMOINGUon Wi e Cuer Cnarges, wnie

is supported.

3 Standard Table maknng a false statement the
t oﬂ'ense isa fi vegto ten day suspensuon Due to the fact

Under sectlon 1.1 b of the Standard Table, concealment of mlsappropnated NGA
property where the actlon was dellberate the recommended penalty is a ten day

p _
be considered in determmmg whether the penalty for a subsequent offense should be selected from the
first, second, ‘or third offense column under this table. The subsequent offense need not be similar to any
previous offense within the reckoning period in order to move from a first to a second or even a third
offense in the table. Your letter of warning in May 1997 carries a reckoning period of six months from the
date of issuance. Thus, it cannot be considered to make your cumrent misconduct a second offense under
the reckoning period. Additionally, the proposal to suspend you which was issued in March 2002, and
was referenced earlier in this letter to establish clarity of notice, cannot be considered under the
reckoning period, as a decision to suspend you was not issued until Apdl 25, 2002, and was therefore not
concluded before your current misconduct. Thus, | am treating the charges against you as your first
offenses under the Standard Table.
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with the other charges, supports the proposed penalty of removal
Based on the egregiousness of your misconduct; the intentional and repetitive
nature of your offenses; and my loss of trust in you to continue to carry out your duties; |
believe your removal is the only appropriate penalty to propose based on your present
misconduct under the Standard Table. Additionally, although | have not relied on your
ing in determining which “offense column from the Standard
"'fTabIe'to" use, |.do consrder_lt an aggravating factor, further justifying the more serious
penalties under the first offense column. Under the Standard Table, the aggravating
period is the length of time that a prior disciplinary action will be considered as an
aggravating factor in determining the appropriate penalty from the range of avaiiabie
. penaltres within an offense ‘column in the Standard Table. The aggravating period is six
years. . : i

Desprte the clear notlce in your past dnscupllnary actions, your conduct

demonstrates that ‘you. do,not possess the’ nec ssary level of responsrblllty integrity and - -

.judgment to. carry out thi S expected.of the NationalJGaII'er‘y of Art. Thus,
‘based tipon the above, | bel ve that this propos‘ removal is consistent and warranted
Aunder the Standard Tabl ‘wrll promote- the ffi cnency of the federal service and
' ‘vGallery operations. '

The Gallery has an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) which is intended to
help employees with any problems that may be affecting their performance or conduct.
If you would like to find out more about this confidential program, you may contact one
of the EAP counselors by calling 1-800-222-0364.

Response Rights

S .5:.=_You may respond to thls proposal, orally “andlor in writing, to Kurt Sisson, Chief of <.~

g Facrlatres Management,-who is the deciding official on this action. You will be allowed

. fifteen (15) calendar days from your receipt of this letter to submit your response.
Consideration will be given to extending this time if you submit a request in writing to
~ Mr. Sisson stating the reason for requiring more time. You may submit affidavits in
‘support of your answer. Full consideration will be given to any answer you submit.
Additionally, if there are medical or other conditions that may have affected your
conduct outlined above, you may provide medical or other information as part of your
response.

Please note that during the notice period of this proposal, you will be carried in a
paid, nonduty status (i.e., on paid administrative leave). Normally, you would be
allowed official time to prepare your reply if you submitted a written request to Mr.
Sisson explaining the amount of time needed. However, since you will be carried on
paid administrative leave status, this request is not applicable. You have the right to be
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represented by an attomey or other representative at your own expense.

You may contact Lurs Baquedano Gallery Representative, in the Personnel
Office at ext. 6296 to review any written materials relied upon in making this proposal.

- Awritten decrsr vy_rﬂ be issued to you; as soon as possible after your response
ecerved or if you have not responded after the expiration of the fifteen (15) calendar

Srncerely,

mber
_::,_Deputy Chlef
& ‘=‘;1'Fa'1__cilities Management
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National Gallery of Art

Washington, D.C. 20565

August 29, 2002

Mr. Fred Dodge
706 Latham Drive
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Dear Mr. Dodge:

By official notice, dated and recsived on July 15, 2002, Michasi Giamber, Deputy
Chief, Office of Facilities Management (AFM), proposed to remove you from your
position as an Electrician, WG-2805-10, at the National Gallery of Art (NGA/Gallery),
and from the federal service no sooner than thirty (30) calendar days from the date you
received the proposal lstter for the following reasons:

Reason 1. UNAUTHORIZED TAKING OF AN NGA 1.D. BADGE

Reason2: MAKING A FALSE STATEMENT

Reason 3: CONCEALMENT OF MISAPPROPRIATED NGA PROPERTY

Reason 4. TAMPERING WITH A GALLERY KEY RING

This is a letter of decision on that proposal.

I have given full and careful consideration to the proposal and the materials relied
upon to make it. | also considered the written response from your attomey, Lee
Boothby, which you submitted on August 6, 2002. | also interviewed Mr. Giamber;
Brannock Reilly, Security Specialist; James Lucey, Chief, Office of Protection Services;

- and Brian Thomas, Electrical Engineering Technician. This was the only information
available since you did not provide an oral regponse.

Upon review of this matter, | find that the reasons and specifications, as
contained in the proposal, are fully supported by the evidence, and thus sustained.
Moreover, | believe that removal is the only appropriate penalty, due to the seriousness
of your misconduct, the intentional and repetitive nature of your offenses, and the loss
of trust your misconduct has created. My analysis of the charges and the penalty
determination follows below.
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Review of the Chargas:
ification A; Reas 1and 2:

According to the proposal, on March 1, 2002, you visited the Identification Office
{o replace your malfunctioning 1.D. badge. However, when Mr. Reilly generated a new
1.D. badge for you, a recurring problem with the printer ribbon caused your portrait to
develop as a black silhouette. You were amused by the look of this unserviceable I.D.
badge and asked Mr. Reilly if you couid keep it.

The proposal stated that Mr. Reilly told you that he had to destroy such defective
badges and could not let you have it. He then issued you a proper 1.D. badge. To the
best of his recollection, Mr. Reilly placed the defective badge on a counter along with
other badges that needed to be destroyed. A few days later, Mr. Thomas, your
supervisor at the time, observed you displaying the defective badge with the blacked out
silhouette of your face. He contacted Mr. Reilly and inquired why you were issued a
defective I.D. badge. Mr. Reilly explained what had occurred and concluded that you
must have taken the defective badge, despite him telling you that you could not have it
and that it needed to be destroyed. When Mr. Thomas questioned you about this
matter on March 5, 2002, you admitted to having the badge, but toid him that Mr. Reilly

had said that yeu could have it.

Thus, you were charged with the unauthorized taking of an NGA 1.D. badgs for
takmg the defectlve Gallery 1.D. badge, despite Mr. Reilly's instructions that you couid
not have it and that it needed to be destroyed. You were also charged with making a
false statement for telling Mr. Thomas that Mr. Reilly had allowed you to take the
defective 1.D. badge.

In your written response, you denied that Mr. Reilly told you that you could not
take the defective I.D. badge. You stated that these charges relate to stale complaints
against you and that this matter was resolved within a week of March 1, 2002. You
argued that these charges were brought against you because you had complained to
Earl A. Powell lll, Director, that the Gallery had viclated your rights, as well as your
son's rights under the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA). Without being mora specific,
you also alleged that the charges against you arose only after you raised “certain union
complaints directed against the administration” of the Gallery. ' You also stated that this
incident was, at best, a misunderstanding and did not compromise Gallery security.

' Given the unspeciﬁed nature of your allegation about union complaints against the Gallery, | have not
addressed i in this decision. More Importantly, you have not specifically alleged what union activities
“caused embarrassment to fthe Gallery’s] administration for its failures.” In fact, in response to my
request, the Gallery's Personnel Office indicated that it has not received any adverse findings in any ULP
or other labor relations matter you have been involved with to date.
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You stated that Mr. Giamber's claim that Gallery security may have been compromised
is a pretext, since if that was the case, action should have been taken in March 2002,
instead of waiting until July 2002, when the proposal to remove you was issued. You
also argued that the fact that you displayed the badge freely to your co-workers and did
not hide that you had it, shows that you thought you had permission to have the
defective badge in your possession.

in terms of your claims that these charges are stale and that action should have
been taken earlier than July if they truly compromised Gallery security, | have the
following observations. Based on the evidence presented, | do not believe that these
charges are stale, since if there was a delay, it was not prejudicial to your case and it
was due to your own actions. For example, following Mr. Thomas’ questioning of you
on March 5, 2002, about the Gallery |.D. badge, you expiored resigning from Gallery
employment. On March 15, 2002, you initially submitted a resignation to be effective on
March 29, 2002. You then rescinded it on March 29, 2002. Thus, because of your
stated intent to resign, the Gallery did not address this matter in March 2002, Soon
thereafter, the Gallery began investigating the key Incident (described more fully under
Specification B), which was triggered by your telephone call on or about April 11, 2002.
The investigation was concluded in mid-June 2002. After reviewing the investigation,
and determining the next course of action, Mr. Giamber issued your proposed removal
on July 15™. Thus, ! do not believe the proposal to remove you, issued on July 15,

2002, was unduly delayed or stale, given the facts in this case.

As to your allegation that the charges against you were in response to your
complaint to Mr. Powell about violation of your FMLA rights, | note the following. Your
letter to Mr. Powell was dated March 8, 2002. Mr. Powell's office received your [stter on
March 11, 2002. The Gallery responded to your complaint by letter dated March 20,
2002. Since Mr. Thomas questioned you about taking the defective Gallery I.D. badge
on March 5, 2002, his questioning was unrelated to your complaint to Mr. Powsll, dated
March 8, 2002.

More importantly, in reviewing this specification, it is clear that the predominant
matter at issue is whether Mr. Reilly authorized your taking of the defective |.D. badge
as you claim, or whether you did so without his authorization, as described in the
proposal. In order to resolve this credibility question, | spoke to Mr. Reilly to discuss his
version of the events surrounding this matter. Mr. Reilly’s version was similar to his
written statement, included with the materials relied upon in this action. In essence, he
observed that you were amused by the defective |.D. badge and said you asked him if
you could keep it. Mr. Reilly noted that people often ask if they can keep their old 1.D.
badges and his reply to them is the same as the one he gave you. He told you that he

could not let you have the defective |.D. badge.
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During our conversation, | found Mr. Reilly's demeanor to be professional,
courteous and helpful. | did not get the impression that he was being deceptive,
Morseover, it appears that he deals with similar requests from smployses wanting to
keep old or defective |.D. badges on a routine basis. If he had authorized such
requests, he could have affected the integrity of the Gallery’s 1.D. program. Also, |
doubt that Mr. Reilly would be at this job for long, as it is his primary responsibility to
ansure the effectiveness of the |.D. system. Mr. Reilly added that he knows Mr.
Thomas, Mr. Giamber, and you only as Gallery employaes for whom he has prepared
1.D.s. Thus, | do not believe that Mr. Reilly is biased in this matter against you.

Next, | reviewed your credibility. Since you did not provide an oral response, |
relied on the record in this matter. As discussed in more detail under Specification B,
the record shows that you lied when you claimed to be unaware of any information
concerning any unauthorized tampering with key rings. Thus, your untruthful
statements under Specification B, make me question your credibility under this
specification, relating to whether Mr. Reilly authorized your taking of the defective 1.D.
badge.

Based on this analysis, | consider Mr. Reilly's version of events to be the true and
accurate version of what occurred. Since Mr. Reilly did not authorize your taking of the
defective 1.D. badge, | have decided to uphold the charge of unauthorized taking of an
NGA 1.D. badge. Additionally, for teling Mr. Thomas that Mr. Reilly had allowed you to
take the defective |.D. badge, when in fact Mr. Reilly had prohibited you from taking it, 1
have decided to uphold the charge of making a false statement.

Specification B; Reasons 2, 3 and 4:

According to the proposal, on April 15, 2002, Mr. Giamber questioned you about
a report he had received from Mr. Thomas that sometime in January 2001, you had
removed the Seventh Street (WP-4) elavator key from his engineer’s key ring. You
replied that you had not done 8o and added that you were completely unaware of any
information concerning unauthorized tampering with key rings. Reportedly, you stated,
“J have no information about anybody removing keys from key rings.”

An administrative investigation of these allegations followed. As spelled out
more fully in the proposal, the following information was discovered. After Mr. Thomas
started working at the Gallery in October 2000, he began using the WP-4 elevator as a
convenient way to access the basement leve! of the West Building where the Electrical

Shop is located. Instead of picking up his engineer's key ring from the security office
located on Fourth Street,2 Mr. Thomas relied on you to access the WP-4 elevator.

2 Gallery Clrcular No. 58, Key Palicy, Section V.A., provides as follows:
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According to Mr. Thomas, you had a separate key to the WP-4 elevator, contrary to
sscurity regulations. This key was always in your possession,; it was not attached to a
key ring; and you did not return it to the security office each evening as required. Mr,
Thomas explained that one moming, approximately in January 2001, you forgot your
WP-4 elevator key at home and the two of you had to walk a greater distance in order to
return to the Electrical Shop. Mr. Thomas stated that in order to prevent this from
happening again, you detached the WP-4 elevator key from his engineer’s key ring.
You reportedly told him, *"Don’'t worry about it. If anybody asks, tell them the key ring
broke and bring it back to me. I'll have it put back on.”

As described in the proposal, Mr. Thomas admitted that when he turned in his
engineer's kay ring in August 2001, and was upgraded to a supervisor's key ring, he
kept the detached WP-4 slevator key from the engineer's key ring in his possession.
He added that you knew. this. According to Mr. Thomas, he believed you set out to get
him in trouble for the detached WP-4 elevator key, in retaliation for his proposed
disciplinary action against you in February 2002 for misconduct on an unrelated matter.

As noted in the proposal, Robert Lowry, Plumber, stated that in early March
2002, he overheard an individual he believed to be you, stats that you were going to
have Mr. Thomas' keys checked. Mr. Lowry further confirmed that he warned Mr.
Thomas about this at the time.

Additionally, Robert Brown, Locksmith Leader, admitted that it was you who had
informed him that Mr. Thomas had an elevator key detached from a key ring. He stated
that this was the reason he had questioned Mr. Thomas about the missing WP-4
elevator key on April 11, 2002,

The proposal noted that you were interviewed on May 9, 2002, as part of this
administrative investigation. 'In response to questions by Enis Pinar, Investigator, you
stated that you were unaware of any Gallery issued keys, such as elevator keys,
missing from key rings. You also denied ever taking Mr. Thomas' key ring and returning

All keys, including those for elevators, escalators, mechanical and maintenance
rooms, etc., will be kept in a locked key vault lacated in the Protection Services
Security Control Office. Keys will be placed onto a numbered key ring to
correspond with the key vault hook number. Keys for persons who need several
change keys to perform their job functions, or any form of controlied key, will be
placed on a numbered key ring that will be checked out from the Security Office
when needed, and returned to the Security Office before leaving the premisas
each day. A list of persons who are authorized to draw specific key rings will be
maintained in the Security Control Office. This list will be the main determinant of
whether a person is authorized to check out a particular key ring. Exceptions to
the key ring authorization list will be prohibited In all but emergency situations
and then only through the authorization of the Chief of Protection Services.

D
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it back to him with the WP-4 elevator key remaved from the ring. In terms of any
knowledge on the subject, you stated that in April 2002, Daniel Smith, Electrician
Leader, told you something about Mr. Thomas being set up with regard to some missing

keys.

When Mr. Smith was questioned during the administrative investigation, he
contradicted you and said that you, not he, had stated that you heard that someone took
the elevator key off Mr. Thomas' key ring and re-walded the ring back.

Based on the above, Mr. Giamber concluded that you did have information
and/or knowledge concerning unauthorized tampering with Gallery key rings, contrary to
your statements to Mr. Pinar and to him. He cited Mr. Brown's admission that it was
you who had alerted him about Mr. Thomas' detached elevator key as proof of this. As
further proof that you knew more than you were willing to let on, Mr. Giambaer cited Mr.
Lowry's statement that he overheard you say that you were going to have Mr. Thomas'
keys checked. Finally, Mr. Giamber gave greater weight to Mr. Thomas' statements in
this matter, since parts of it are supported by Mr. Brown and Mr. Lowry, and becauss
they wera made against his own interest.

Thus, you were charged with making a false statement for your untruthful
statement on April 15, 2002, when you stated to Mr. Giamber that you were completely
unaware of any information concerning any unauthorized tampering with key rings.

You were also charged with making a false statement for your untruthful
statement on May 9, 2002, during an official investigation, when you told Mr. Pinar that
you were unaware of any Gallery issued keys missing from key rings.

You were charged with concealment of misappropriated NGA property for having
had in your possession, a WP-4 elevator key, apparently detached from a key ring, and
not returned to security in the evening.

Finally, you were charged with tampering with a Gallery key ring, for taking Mr.
Thomas' engineer’s key ring and returning it with the WP-4 elevator key detached from

it.

In responding to this specification, you again argued that the charges were stale.
You further stated that the Gallery investigated these allegations about keys presumably
* in retaliation for having received letters of inquiry from Senators Paul Sarbanes, dated
March 13, 2002, and Barbara Mikulski, dated May 7, 2002. Their inquiries concerned
your allegations that the Gallery had violated your rights, as well as your son’s rights
under the FMLA. The Gallery responded to your allegations by letter, dated March 20,
2002. The Gallery began its inquiry into the allegations about keys as soon as the
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matter was reported to Mr. Giamber on April 15, 2002. | do net find either letter from
your senators to be relevant in this matter, as the Gallery’s inquiry into the allegations
about keys had its genasis in a telephions call in early April that you initiated to Mr.
Brown, alerting him to possible misconduct by Mr. Thomas. Additionally, for the
reasons previously stated under Specification A, | do not believe that these charges are

stale.

In your response, you also argued that the proposal misrepresented your
knowledge about Gallery issued keys, such as elevator keys, missing from key rings.
Additionally, you alleged that no explanation was given as to why Mr. Brown's
statements were believed instead of yours and why his allegations constituted clear
proof that you had information and/or knowledge concering unauthorized tampering
with Gallery key rings, contrary to your statements to Mr. Giamber and Investigator

Pinar that you knew nothing about this subject matter.

My review of the evidence presented under this specification leads me to the
following conclusions. Mr. Lowry stated that sometime in early March 2002, he
overheard you say that you were going to have Mr. Thomas' keys checked and Mr.
Lowry warned Mr. Thomas about it. | agree with Mr. Giamber, that although Mr. Lowry
only heard you say it and did not actually see who made this statement, he has worksd
with you long enough to be able to recognize your voice.

| next considered the important fact that Mr. Brown admitted that it was you who
had contacted him and informed him that Mr. Thomas had an elevator key detached
from a key ring. 1 also found it important that Mr. Brown noted that this was the reason
he had questioned Mr. Thomas on April 11, 2002. Here was the true genesis of this key
investigation, starting with your telephone call. | believe Mr. Brown's statament for the
following reasons. First, this statement is consistent with what Mr. Lowry overheard you
say, that you would have Mr. Thomas' keys checked out. Additionally, | found the
statement that Mr. Brown provided to Investigator Pinar to be honest, and it contained
elements of statements against his own interest. For example he admits to failing to file
incident reports on at least two occasions contrary to AOP procedures. Thus, | found

his statement very credible.

| next considered the timing and possible reasons motivating your call to Mr.
Brown. According to the evidence you prasented, you were upset that Mr. Thomas had
questioned and rejected your use of FMLA leave. Additionally, Mr. Thomas had also
just questioned you about your taking of the defective Gallery 1.D. badge and you were
concerned that he would be taking disciplinary action against you for this incident.
indeed, you had even considered resigning as a result of the badge incident.
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As further evidence that you knew more than you were willing to admit, | also
considered Mr. Smith's statement that it was you, not him, who mentioned having heard
that someone took the elevator key off of Mr. Thomas' kay ring and re-welded the ring

back together.

Finally, | have also considered Mr. Thomas' statements against his own interest,
which alone might be enough to establish that you were not forthcoming with
information in this matter. However, in light of the statements from Mr. Lowry, Mr.
Brown and Mr. Smith, reliance on only Mr. Thomas' statement is not necessary. | agree
with Mr. Gilamber's conclusion that compared to your denials, these additional
statements support and give greater weight to Mr. Thomas' credibility in this case.

Thus, given the above discussion, | have concluded that you did have more
information and/or knowledge concerning unauthorized tampering with Gallery key rings
than you admitted and the fact that Mr. Thomas' key was taken off his key ring.
Spaecifically, | find that you were untruthful when on April 15, 2002, you stated to Mr.
Giamber that you were completely unaware of any information concerning any
unauthorized tampering with key rings. Thus, | have upheld the charge of makmg a

false statement.

| also find that you were untruthful on May 9, 2002, when during an official
investigation, you told Mr. Pinar that you were unaware of any Gallery issued keys
being missing from key rings. As a result, | have upheld the charge of making a false
statement under these facts.

| also credit Mr. Thomas' report that you had in your possession a WP-4 elevator
key, apparently detached from a key ring, and not returned to security in the evening.
Thus, | have decided to uphold the charge of concealment of misappropriated NGA

property.

Finally, | have upheld the charge of tampering with a Gallery key ring. | base this
finding on the fact that Mr. Thomas’ statements on this charge are supported by the
independent information provided by three other Gallery employeas. Mr. Lowry
overheard you say that you were going to have Mr. Thomas' key ring checked. Mr.
Brown stated that you alerted him to the missing key from Mr. Thomas' key ring.
Additionally, Mr. Smith said that you mentioned that someone took the elevator key off
of Mr. Thomas' key ring and re-welded the ring back together. Thus, considering all of
the information provided on this particular charge, | am convinced that it was you who
took Mr. Thomas’ engineer’s key ring and returned it with the WP-4 elevator key
detached, as stated in the proposal.

.93
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Based on the above charges and specifications, | have decided to remove you
from your position to promote the efficiency of the federal service and Gallery /
operations. Your removal will be effective on Friday, August 30, 2002,

Review of the Penalty:

In upholding your removal, { have reviewed the relevant aggravating and
mitigating factors, as well as your defenses (described in more detail in the next section,
beiow). First, | have considered the nature and seriousness of your offenses as a
Gallery employee. The Gallery has a right to expect its staff to be honest, trustworthy
and candid. Your misconduct raises serious doubts about your trustworthiness,
integrity, and continued fitness for employment at the Gallery. | have also considered
that your misconduct included not only making false statements to supervisors and an
investigator, but that you made them in relation to both keys and credentials. Moreover,
your disturbing pattern of false statements and deception shows that you lack the
potential for rehabilitation and that no lesser alternative penalty applies.

| also considered your unauthorized taking of the Gallery 1.D. badge and your
subsequent lie about how you acquired it, in light of the Gallery's mission to protect
priceless and irreplaceable works of art. Given this mission and the heightened scrutiny
following the incidents of September 11, 2001, 1 agree that your unauthorized taking of
the 1.D. badge, as well as your tampering with key rings that allow access to many non-
public areas of the Gallery, are serious offenses that have destroyed the Gallery's
confidence and trust that you possess the necessary judgment and veracity to be
retained as a Gallery employee. Although the badga was not activated, | balieve that
credentials are a critical element of our Gallery security program and there was still a
potential for its unlawful use. Additionally, your tampering with controlled Gallery key
rings is further evidence of your complete disregard for the Gallery’s critical security
precautions. Thus, your lack of integrity and poor judgment are contrary to the
standards of conduct expected of Gallery and federal employees.

Your misconduct is not only egregious by its very nature, but alsa in relation to
your duties and responsibilities. As an Electrician at the Gallery, your work impacts on
the Gallery's ability to provide functional, pleasing, and safe space for research,
education, exhibition, production, storage, operations, and staff functions throughout our
landmark buildings. As such, the degree of dependability and vigilance required of
someone in your position is at the highest level. Due to your misconduct, which was
intentional and repeated, | do not believe that you possess the ability to perform your
duties as an Electrician effectively without constant supervision.

| have also considered the clarity with which you were on notice of your conduct.
In this regard, | believe that your actions relating to your resignation, which you

-89
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subsequently rescinded on March 29, 2002, clearly indicate that you knew the
senousness with which the Gallery would consnder an unauthorized taking of Gallery
property.® You were also clearly on notice that the Gallery would consider a false
statement as a serious incident of misconduct, since although the charge was not
ultimately upheld against you, you had previously received notice of a proposal to
suspend you for making a false statement, among other charges. Finally, | agree that
your apparent attempt to use the information concerning the tampered key rings to get
Mr. Thomas into trouble, shows that you knew the seriousness of such an accusation,

boarmmamant irm thoa momAiimb AF nrmmarinas witha bay rimms vsiirealf Thie us slasehs Lomaus
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that the Gallery would consider your offenses serious and would likely take action to
address them.

Additionally, | considered your past disciplinary history. On May 5, 1997, you
were issued a letter of warning for failure to carry out specific written instructions and for
failure to carry out regularly assigned duties. In your response, you argued that
reference to this pravious disciplinary action against you was gratuitous and designed to
prejudice you, since the penalty must be considered a first offense. While it is true that
this action is considered a first offense?, its inclusion is not gratuitous or prejudicial. The
Gallery's Standard Table of Offenses and Penalties ("Standard Table") defines the
aggravating period as the length of time that a prior disciplinary action will be
considered as an aggravating factor in determining the appropriate penalty from the
range of available penalties within an offense column in the Standard Table. The
aggravating period is six years. Thus, like Mr. Giamber, | have not relied on your May
1997 letter of warning in determining which offense column from the Standard Table to
use. However, | have considered it an aggravating factor, further justifying the more
serious penaities under the first offense column.

3 Despite the arguments raised in your response, you admit that you went to Mr, Baquedano out of fear
that your unauthorized taking of the Gallery |D wouid be used to remove you from the Gallery. Thus, you
knew the potential penalty for such an offense could be your removal. This appears to be why you
contemplated resigning from the Gallery and it appears to be the only reason why it was Included In the
roposal.
PThe Instant action is considered a first offense under the Gallery's Standard Table of Offenses and
Penaltles’ (Standard Tabie) “reckoning period” for all charges and specifications. The “reckoning period®
is the length of ime that a prior disclplinary action will be considered in determining whether the penalty
for a subsequent offense should be selected from the first, second, or third offense column under this
table. The subsequent offense need not be similar to any previous offense within the reckoning period In
order to move from a first to a second or even a third offense In the table. Your letter of warning In May
1997 carries a reckoning perlad of six months from the date of issuance. Thus, it cannot be considered to
make your current misconduct a second offense under the reckoning period. Additionally, the proposal to
suspend you which was issued in March 2002, and was referenced earlier in this letter to establish clarity
of notlce, cannot be considered under the reckoning period, as a decision to suspend you was not Issued
until April 28, 2002, and was therefore not concluded befors your current misconduct. Thus, | am treating
the charges against you as your first offenses under the Standard Tabie.
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| also reviewed the Gallery's Standard Table to decide upon the appropriate
penalty. Unauthorized taking of an NGA 1.D. badge is similar to the charge of
unauthorized taking of property controlled by the NGA, which is included under section
J.2. of the Standard Table. The recommended penalty for a first offense is a ten day
suspension to removal. Based on this charge alone, as well as in combination with the
other charges, | find that the penalty of removal is supported.

Under section D.2 of the Standard Table, making a false statement, the
recommended penaity for a first offense is a five to ten day suspension. | agree that
your offenses should be considered much more egregious, given that your faise
statements occurred during inquiries into potentially serious security matters and that
they occurred during a short period of time,. Thus, considering that this charge consists
of three separate incidents, | beliave that removal is supported on this charge alone, in
light of the serious nature of your false statements during official inquiries. | also believe
that remaval is supported by this charge in combination with the other charges.

Under section 1.1.b. of the Standard Table, concealment of misappropriated NGA
property where the action was deliberate, the recommended penalty is a ten day
suspension to removal. As to this charge, | agree that removal is supported by this
charge in combination with the other charges.

Tampering with a Gallery key ring is similar to the charge of unauthorized
diversion of property controiled by the NGA, which is included under section J.2, of the
Standard Table. The recommended penalty for a first offense is a ten day suspension
to removal. As to this charge, | believe that this charge alone, as well as in combination
with the other charges, supports the penalty of removal.

| agree with Mr. Giamber that your misconduct was egregious; intentional and
repetitive. Given the nature of your offenses; and the subsequent loss of trust it has
generated in your continued ability to carry out your duties; | find that your removal is
the only appropriate penalty based on your present misconduct under the Standard

Table.

In response to the proposal, you argued that the penalty of removal is
inappropriate, as its true intent is to punish you and get rid of you because of your
activities which embarrassed management by pointing out its failures. As discussed in
more detail below, | have found no evidence to support that you are being remaved for
any reason other than your misconduct, as outlined in the proposai. Indeed, despite
clear notice, your conduct demonstrates that you do not possess the necessary level of
rasponsibility, integrity and judgment to carry out the duties expected of you at the
National Gallery of Art. Based on the above, | believe that your removal is consistent

<11
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and warranted under the Standard Table and will promote the efficiency of the federal
service and Gallery operations.

Review of General Defenses:

In your response, you argued that your propesed removal is in retaliation for
statements you made and violates your constitutional right to frae speech. You also

presented evidence from Lloyd Self, your supervisor at the time, aileging that your
removal was based on your union activities. You additionally argued that your privacy
was violated when a security alert barring you from non-public Gallery areas was posted
in the Gallery. Finally, you alleged disparate treatment in the manner in which Mr.

Thomas was disciplined compared to your proposed removal.

Retaliation Claim

You argue that the timing of your proposed removal shows that it is in retaliation
for your union activities; as well as for the letters you wrote to your Senators, and to Mr.
Powell, the Gallery’s Director. You argue that this also represented a violation of your
First Amendment right to seek redress of your grievances and your right to speak freely.

In reviewing your retaliation claim, | note that you did not specify exactly what
union activities “causs[d] embarrassment to [the Gallery's] administration for its
failures.” Thus, | have not considered your allegation relating to your union activities
‘any further. | did review your correspondence with your Senators and Mr. Powell.
Based on this raview, | do not believe that any of these activities or communications
constituted protected activity. Turning to your constitutional claim, | find no evidence to
support that your proposed removal was motivated by your exercise of free speech.
indeed, none of the charges in the two specifications relate to any constitutionally
protected speech or statement. My review of this case convinces me that the serious
charges cited against you stand on their own, separate and apart from your allegations
of retaliation, which appear to be an attempt to divert attention from your misconduet.
Accordingly, | find no connection between your claims of retaliation and your
misconduct other than through the coincidence that they occurred at about the same

time.

*The only allegation you have made which relates to your union Involvement appears to be that you were
identified to Mr. Self as a union steward. (Discussed more fully under Mr. Seif's Alleqgations.) However,
this by itself does not establish how your being a union steward caused embarrassment to Gallery
management for its alleged fallures, nor does it establish that your removal was due to your union
activitles,

« 12
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Mr. Seif's Alleqations

You submitted a statement from Mr. Self, in which he relayed information he said
he heard when he was interviawed for his job on or about May 15, 2002. He said he
was told that you are a union steward; that you were described as a problem employee;
that you would not be around much longer; and that there was “something already in the
works” for you. You argued that this is proof that your proposed removal is designed to
get rid of you for your union activities,

| have reviewed thase allegations, to assess whether the charges against you
could be false or fabricated with the purpose of removing you from the Gallery, as you
allege. For purposes of this analysis only, | have assumed that Mr. Self's allegations
are true. | have also considered that by the time these alleged statements were made,
the badge investigation had been concluded. Additionally, Facilities Management was
aware of the ongoing key investigation and you had already been interviewed about
possible tampering with key rings. Thus, given this timing and the seriousness of the
charges you wers facing and the possible penalties involved, | do not construe the
statements allegedly made to Mr. Self as indicating some type of conspiracy against
you. Instead, these statements appear to reflect an accurate assessment of the
seriousness of your misconduct and the likelincod that your removal would be proposed
based on thaese offenses.

Privacy Violation

You also alleged that the Gallery violated your privacy when it posted a security
alert with your name, date of birth, social security number, and photo, on a bulletin

board easily seen by Gallery employees.

Although you have raised an issue concerning allegedly improper disclosure of
information about yourself, you have not shown that the release of the information
contributed to the Gallery proposing your remaval. Thus, your alleged invasion of
privacy is unretated to your proposed removal. Moreover, based on my discussion with
Chief Lucey, the security alert posted by the Gallery is the same one used whenever an
employee is barred from non-public areas of the Gallery, pending a decision on a
propased removal.

Disparate Traatment

In addition, you allege that your removal is an act of disparate treatment. To
make out a claim of disparate treatment, the charges and the circumstances
surrounding the charged behavior must be substantially similar. The Gallery may refute
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a charge of disparate treatment by showing that the offenses in question were not réally
equivalent.

You have identifiad Mr. Thomas as an Individual who has been treated more
favarably than you. | have raviewad his case and find that he does not satisfy the
requirement of substantial similarity with your case in terms of position, misconduct, or
the seriousness of the charges. Thus, you have failed to establish that you have been

treated disparately.
Grievance/Appeal/Complalnt Rights:

Please read the following paragraphs carefully, and note that you must make
choices about which avenue to pursue. While you have several choices, ultimately, you
may only select ONE avenue of review from the three presented below.

You may griave this decision under the Negotlated Grievance Procedure,
Circular No. 23A, OR you may appeal this action to the Merit Systems Protection
Board (MSPB), but not both.

A grievance must be in writing and should be submitted to Charles Schneider,

~ Deputy Administrator, within twenty-one (21) calendar days after your removal has been
effected. Consideration will be given to extending this time, if you submit a request in
writing to Mr. Schneider, stating the reason for needing more time. Full consideration
will be given to any material you submit. You have the right to be represented by your
Union representative or to represent yourself. If you choose the Negotiated Grievance
Procedure, you will waive your immediate MSPB appeal rights. However, later on in the
grievance process, there is an exception to this waiver if you have alleged prohibited
discrimination. In that case, you may be eligible for MSPB review of the Arbitration
decision at the end of the grievance process. Please see the enclosed revised MSPB
regulations for further information on this exception.

If you elect an appeal to the MSPB, it must be filed within thirty (30) calendar
days after the effective date of your removal. if you are also alleging discrimination, you
should include a description of those allegations in your appeal. Enclosed are a copy of
the appeal form and a copy of the Federal Register, Part IV, MSPB, 5 C.F.R. Parts
1201-1206 and 1209. An appeal with allegatioris of discrimination is considered a
mixed case appeal, which is covered under 5 C.F.R. Part 1201.151 and 28 C.F.R.
1614.302)(a)(2). Your appseal to the MSPB should inform the Board that records of your
case may be obtained by writing to: Personnel Office, National Gallery of Art, 2000B
South Club Drive, Landover, MD 20785. This information will assist the Board in
processing your appeal. If you appeal to the MSPB, you have the right to be
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represented by an attorney or other representative at your own expense. Your appeal
should be submitted to:

Merit Systems Protection Board
Washington Regional Office
1800 Diagonal Road, Suite 205
Alexandria, VA 22314-2840

if you wish to file a discrimination complaint regarding vour removal, you

may do so under the Gallery's Negotiated Grievance Procedure, Circular No. 234,
OR the Discrimination Complaint Process, Circular No. 39, but not both.

If you wish to file a grievance claiming discrimination, the procedures are described
above.

If you wish to file a discrimination complaint under the Discrimination Complaint
Process, Circular No. 39, as amended, you must contact an EEO counselor within 45
days of the personnel action that you believe was discriminatory and file a timely
complaint. Your complaint will be considered a mixed case complaint, which is
processed under 29 CFR 1614.302(a)(1).

Please note that under 29 CFR 1614.302(b), you may file a mixed case
APPEAL to the MSPB OR a mixed case COMPLAINT under the Gallery's
"discrimination complaint procedurss, BUT NOT BOTH.

If you have any questions concerning the grievance procedure or your MSPB
appeal rights, you may contact Luis Baquedano, Gallery Representative, in the
Personnel Office at (202) 842-6296. If you have any questions about the discrimination
complaint process, you may contact Lindsay Patterson, EEQ Officer, at (202) 842-6070.

Sincarely,

rﬁ-moﬁ Ny P \_Z,/m-'
Georgd-Ann Tabin
Deputy Treasurer

¢c.  Lee Boothby, Esq.
4545 42" Street, NW
Suite 201
Washington, DC 20016



Docket No. DC-0752-03-0011-1-1
Party: Agency's Representative

Personnel Officer

National Gallery Of Art

6th & Constitution Ave., NW.
Washington, DC 20565



